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Reduction Act of 1995, we provide the 
general public and other Federal 
agencies with an opportunity to 
comment on proposed, revised, and 
continuing collections of information. 
This helps us assess the impact of our 
information collection requirements and 
minimize the public’s reporting burden. 
It also helps the public understand our 
information collection requirements and 
provide the requested data in the 
desired format. 

We are soliciting comments on the 
proposed ICR that is described below. 
We are especially interested in public 
comment addressing the following 
issues: (1) Is the collection necessary to 
the proper functions of the USGS; (2) 
will this information be processed and 
used in a timely manner; (3) is the 
estimate of burden accurate; (4) how 
might the USGS enhance the quality, 
utility, and clarity of the information to 
be collected; and (5) how might the 
USGS minimize the burden of this 
collection on the respondents, including 
through the use of information 
technology. 

Comments that you submit in 
response to this notice are a matter of 
public record. We will include or 
summarize each comment in our request 
to OMB to approve this ICR. Before 
including your address, phone number, 
email address, or other personal 
identifying information in your 
comment, you should be aware that 
your entire comment—including your 
personal identifying information—may 
be made publicly available at any time. 
While you may ask us in your comment 
to withhold your personal identifying 
information from public review, we 
cannot guarantee that we will be able to 
do so. 

Abstract: USGS will reach out to 
approximately 500 organizations 
previously identified by the Desert 
Landscape Conservation Cooperative 
(DLCC) to solicit conservation project 
data from within the Rio Grande Basin. 
Requested data will include information 
such the project’s purpose, location, 
conservation activities, achievements, 
group overseeing the project, and 
project contact information. These data 
will be assembled into a geodatabase 
that will be stored on ScienceBase.gov 
for general distribution to the public. 
The geodatabase will be accompanied 
by a USGS Open-File report that 
documents the results of the survey and 
provides a user-manual for the 
geodatabase. This geodatabase will also 
be used to drive web map services on 
DataBasin.org. The goal of this effort is 
to address a need that was identified by 
DLCC partners to improve how resource 
managers in the Rio Grande Basin can 

coordinate their conservation efforts to 
help manage the river in a way that 
meets municipal, industrial, and 
environmental needs. 

Title of Collection: Rio Grande Basin 
Conservation Database. 

OMB Control Number: 1028–New. 
Form Number: NA. 
Type of Review: New. 
Respondents/Affected Public: 

Respondents will include public and 
private land owners, and local, state and 
Federal entities. 

Total Estimated Number of Annual 
Respondents: 500. 

Total Estimated Number of Annual 
Responses: 500. 

Estimated Completion Time per 
Response: 20 minutes. 

Total Estimated Number of Annual 
Burden Hours: 167. 

Respondent’s Obligation: Voluntary. 
Frequency of Collection: One time. 
Total Estimated Annual Non-hour 

Burden Cost: $0. 
An agency may not conduct or 

sponsor and a person is not required to 
respond to a collection of information 
unless it displays a currently valid OMB 
control number. 

The authorities for this action are the 
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (44 
U.S.C. 3501, et seq.). 

Meghan Roussel, 
Deputy Director, Texas Water Science Center. 
[FR Doc. 2019–11092 Filed 5–28–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4338–11–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1158] 

Certain Digital Video Receivers, 
Broadband Gateways, and Related 
Hardware and Software Components; 
Institution of Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
April 26, 2019, under section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on 
behalf of Rovi Corporation of San Jose, 
California and Rovi Guides, Inc. of San 
Jose, California. The complaint was 
amended on May 16, 2019. The 
complaint, as amended, alleges 
violations of section 337 based upon the 
importation into the United States, the 
sale for importation, and the sale within 
the United States after importation of 
certain digital video receivers, 
broadband gateways, and related 

hardware and software components by 
reason of infringement of certain claims 
of U.S. Patent No. 8,001,564 (‘‘the ’564 
patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 7,779,445 (‘‘the 
’445 patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 7,386,871 
(‘‘the ’871 patent’’); U.S. Patent No. 
8,156,528 (‘‘the ’528 patent’’); U.S. 
Patent No. 7,301,900 (‘‘the ’900 patent’’); 
and U.S. Patent No. 7,200,855 (‘‘the ’855 
patent’’). The amended complaint 
further alleges that an industry in the 
United States exists or is in the process 
of being established as required by the 
applicable Federal Statute. 

The complainants request that the 
Commission institute an investigation 
and, after the investigation, issue a 
general exclusion order, or in the 
alternative a limited exclusion order, 
and cease and desist orders. 
ADDRESSES: The amended complaint, 
except for any confidential information 
contained therein, is available for 
inspection during official business 
hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the 
Office of the Secretary, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street SW, Room 112, Washington, DC 
20436, telephone (202) 205–2000. 
Hearing impaired individuals are 
advised that information on this matter 
can be obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at (202) 205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server at https://
www.usitc.gov. The public record for 
this investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of 
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 
telephone (202) 205–2560. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Authority: The authority for 
institution of this investigation is 
contained in section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 
1337, and in section 210.10 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2018). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the amended complaint, the 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
on May 22, 2019, ordered that— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
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United States, the sale for importation, 
or the sale within the United States after 
importation of certain products 
identified in paragraph (2) by reason of 
infringement of one or more of claims 
1–4 and 12–15 of the ’564 patent; claims 
1–11 and 15–24 of the ’445 patent; 
claims 1–19, 21–29, 31–36, 38–43, 45– 
53, 55, and 56 of the ’871 patent; claims 
1–3, 6, 11–18, 20, 23, 24, 26, 27, 29–32, 
and 34–36 of the ’528 patent; claims 1, 
3, 4, 8, 10, 11, 17, 19, 23, 25, and 26 of 
the ’900 patent; and claims 1–63 of the 
’855 patent, and whether an industry in 
the United States exists or is in the 
process of being established as required 
by subsection (a)(2) of section 337; 

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of 
the Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the 
plain language description of the 
accused products or category of accused 
products, which defines the scope of the 
investigation, is ‘‘set-top boxes and 
broadband gateways, and their related 
hardware and software, such as remote 
controls and interactive program 
guides’’; 

(3) For the purpose of the 
investigation so instituted, the following 
are hereby named as parties upon which 
this notice of investigation shall be 
served: 

(a) The complainants are: 
Rovi Corporation, 2160 Gold Street, San 

Jose, CA 95002 
Rovi Guides, Inc., 2160 Gold Street, San 

Jose, CA 95002 
(b) The respondents are the following 

entities alleged to be in violation of 
section 337, and are the parties upon 
which the amended complaint is to be 
served: 
Comcast Corporation, One Comcast 

Center, 1701 John F. Kennedy 
Boulevard, Philadelphia, PA 19103 

Comcast Cable Communications, LLC, 
One Comcast Center, 1701 John F. 
Kennedy Boulevard, Philadelphia, PA 
19103 

Comcast Cable Communications 
Management, LLC, One Comcast 
Center, 1701 John F. Kennedy 
Boulevard, Philadelphia, PA 19103 

Comcast Holdings Corporation, One 
Comcast Center, 1701 John F. 
Kennedy Boulevard, Philadelphia, PA 
19103 
(c) The Office of Unfair Import 

Investigations, U.S. International Trade 
Commission, 500 E Street SW, Suite 
401, Washington, DC 20436; and 

(4) For the investigation so instituted, 
the Chief Administrative Law Judge, 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
shall designate the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge. 

Responses to the amended complaint 
and the notice of investigation must be 
submitted by the named respondents in 
accordance with section 210.13 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 
19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), such 
responses will be considered by the 
Commission if received not later than 20 
days after the date of service by the 
Commission of the amended complaint 
and the notice of investigation. 
Extensions of time for submitting 
responses to the amended complaint 
and the notice of investigation will not 
be granted unless good cause therefor is 
shown. 

Failure of a respondent to file a timely 
response to each allegation in the 
amended complaint and in this notice 
may be deemed to constitute a waiver of 
the right to appear and contest the 
allegations of the amended complaint 
and this notice, and to authorize the 
administrative law judge and the 
Commission, without further notice to 
the respondent, to find the facts to be as 
alleged in the amended complaint and 
this notice and to enter an initial 
determination and a final determination 
containing such findings, and may 
result in the issuance of an exclusion 
order or a cease and desist order or both 
directed against the respondent. 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: May 22, 2019. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2019–11095 Filed 5–28–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1157] 

Certain Female Fashion Dresses, 
Jumpsuits, Maxi Skirts, and 
Accoutrements; Institution of 
Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a 
complaint was filed with the U.S. 
International Trade Commission on 
March 20, 2019, under section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on 
behalf of Style Pantry LLC of Beverly 
Hills, California. An amended 
complaint was filed on April 24, 2019. 
The amended complaint alleges 
violations of section 337 based upon the 
importation and sale of certain female 
fashion dresses, jumpsuits, maxi skirts, 
and accoutrements by reason of false 

designation, false description, dilution, 
and obtaining sales by false claim of 
association, the threat or effect of which 
is to destroy or substantially injure an 
industry in the United States. 

The complainant requests that the 
Commission institute an investigation 
and, after the investigation, issue a 
general exclusion order, or in the 
alternative a limited exclusion order, 
and cease and desist orders. 
ADDRESSES: The amended complaint, 
except for any confidential information 
contained therein, is available for 
inspection during official business 
hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the 
Office of the Secretary, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 500 E 
Street SW, Room 112, Washington, DC 
20436, telephone (202) 205–2000. 
Hearing impaired individuals are 
advised that information on this matter 
can be obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 
205–1810. Persons with mobility 
impairments who will need special 
assistance in gaining access to the 
Commission should contact the Office 
of the Secretary at (202) 205–2000. 
General information concerning the 
Commission may also be obtained by 
accessing its internet server at https://
www.usitc.gov. The public record for 
this investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of 
Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. 
International Trade Commission, 
telephone (202) 205–2560. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Authority: The authority for 
institution of this investigation is 
contained in section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 
1337, and in section 210.10 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2019). 

Scope of Investigation: Having 
considered the amended complaint, the 
U.S. International Trade Commission, 
on May 21, 2019, ordered that— 

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of 
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, an investigation be instituted 
to determine whether there is a 
violation of subsection (a)(1)(A) of 
section 337 in the importation into the 
United States, or in the sale of certain 
products identified in paragraph (2) by 
reason of false designation of origin or 
source, false advertising, or unfair 
competition in violation of 15 U.S.C. 
1125(a), the threat or effect of which is 
to destroy or substantially injure an 
industry in the United States; 
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